
 PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
 REGULAR MEETING 
 MAY 3, 2001 – 7:30 P.M. 
 COUNTY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
 
 MINUTES 
 
Planning and Zoning Board   Staff 
James Barncord, Present    Building/Zoning Official, Malcolm Green, Present 
Don Chancey, Chairman, Excused         Kris DeLaney, Director of Planning & Development, Present 
Roger Conley, Present      County Attorney, Gary Alan Vorbeck, Excused 
Bill Craig, Excused    Planner, B. J. Haney, Present 
Peggy Fraim, Excused    B/Z Executive Secretary, Virginia Stone, Present 
Dan Graham, Present      
Charles Nicholson, Present     
Fred Small, Present 
Vida Tomlinson, Vice-Chairman, Present  News Media - not present 
 

 
Vice-Chairperson Vida Tomlinson called the Regular Meeting to order at 7:30 P.M., roll taken, quorum present. 
 
Secretary Stone advised the Public Notice for the Regular Meeting was published in the Herald-Advocate on  

April 19 and April 26, 2001.  Affidavit of Publication on file. 
 

Building/Zoning Official Green advised courtesy notices were mailed to adjoining property owners, and all 
advertisements were properly posted. 

 
Vice Chairperson Tomlinson explained Planning and Zoning Board’s General Rules of Procedure and 

administered oath to witnesses who planned to offer testimony. 
 
MOTION by Nicholson, second by Barncord to approve Minutes of 04/05/01 Regular Meeting.  Motion carried 

unanimously. 
 

Agenda No. 01-29 
 

Tomlinson advised of a request from Franklin D./Nadine Albritton for an Exception to Policy L1.15 of the “Comp 
Plan” to allow transfer of less than 5.0 acres to immediate family member (daughter) as primary place of residence, on 154 
acres zoned A-1 (Agriculture), on or about Moye Road, Hardee County. 
 
 Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for an Exception to Policy L1.15 of the 
“Comp Plan” and Staff Report for review prior to the 05/03/01 meeting. 
 
 Green highlighted the Staff Report including the analysis of findings, conclusion, and recommendation for 
approval with recommended conditions.  Green submitted the Staff Report to record as evidence; no objections 
presented. 
 
 Tomlinson asked for public input.  There was none. 
 
 MOTION by Conley, second by Nicholson to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners approval 
of the request for an Exception to Policy L1.15 of the “Comp Plan” to allow transfer of less than 5.0 ac to immediate 
family member (daughter) as primary place of residence, 154 ac, zoned A-1 (Agriculture), based on staff’s findings, 
conclusion, and recommendation for approval and recommended conditions.   Motion carried with four voting “yes” 



and Barncord voting “no”. 
PLANNING AND ZONING  
MINUTES          -2-     May 3, 2001 
 
 
 Tomlinson advised BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 05/24/01, 1:30 p.m. 
 
Agenda No. 01-32 
 

Tomlinson advised of a request from Willis C./Margaret E. Beatty for an Exception to Policy L1.15 of the  
”Comp Plan” to allow transfer of less than 5.0 ac to immediate family member (son) as primary place of residence, 35.0 ac, 
zoned A-1 (Agriculture), on or about Johnston Road, Hardee County. 

 
 Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for an Exception to Policy L1.15 of the 
“Comp Plan” and Staff Report for review prior to the 05/03/01 meeting. 
 
 Green highlighted the Staff Report including the analysis of findings, conclusion, and recommendation for 
approval with recommended conditions.  Green submitted the report to record as evidence; no objections were 
presented. 
 
 Tomlinson asked if the Board had any questions; there were none. 
 
 Tomlinson asked for public input; there was none. 
 
 MOTION by Nicholson, second by Small to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners to approve 
the request from Willis C./Margaret E. Beatty for an Exception to Policy L1.15 of the “Comp Plan” to allow transfer of 
less than 5.0 ac to immediate family member (son) as primary place of residence, 35.0 ac, zoned A-1 (Agriculture), 
based on staff’s findings, conclusion, and recommendation for approval and recommended conditions.  Motion 
carried with four voting “yes” and Barncord voting “no”. 
 

Tomlinson advised BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 05/24/01, 1:30 PM. 
 
Agenda No. 01-30 
 
 Tomlinson advised of a BCC initiated request for a Rezone, 4.50 ac from F-$ (Farm-Residential) to C-2 
(General Commercial), to correct a scrivener’s error when the Official Zoning Map was adopted on 02/15/96, on or 
about NW corner of N. Florida Avenue and Knight Road, Hardee County. 
 
 Green highlighted the Staff Report including the analysis of findings, conclusion, and recommendation for 
approval, Green submitted the report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 
 
 Tomlinson asked for public input. 
 
 Genevieve Perin, 1573 N. Florida Avenue, Wauchula, FL  33873, was present and sworn. 
 
 Perin spoke against approving the rezone.  She stated that her property adjoined this property and that she 
heard that a housing project was going to be put there. 
 
 Green stated that there was nothing in the request at the present time indicating that a housing project was 
going to be placed there. 
 
 Small stated that if there is an error, there is no way we can refuse to correct the error. 



 
 Debbie Barker, 1561 US Hwy 17, Wauchula, FL  33873, was present and sworn. 
PLANNING AND ZONING  
MINUTES          -3-     May 3, 2001 
 
 

Barker also spoke against approval of the rezone. 
 
Nicholson stated that even if a housing project was to go in there, under the current zoning a housing 

project could go in there. 
 
Green reported that the proper time to object would be at the time of the request to put a project in. 
 
MOTION by Small, second by Conley to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners approval of the 

request for a Rezone, 4.50 ac from F-R (Farm-Residential) to C-2 (General Commercial), to correct a scrivener’s error 
when the Official Zoning Map was adopted on 02/15/96 and based on staff’s findings, conclusion, and 
recommendation for approval.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Tomlinson advised BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 05/24/01, 1:30 P.M. 
 
Agenda No. 01-31 
 
 Tomlinson advised of a request from Wauchula Square Properties, Inc. by and through its Authorized 
Representative for approval of a Site Development Plan for Wendy’s Restaurant with drive-through, 1.025MOL ac, 
zoned C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial on or about 1440 US Hwy 17 North, Hardee County. 
 
 Each Board Member and Staff received a copy of Application for a Site Development Plan Approval and 
Staff Report prior to the 05/03/01 meeting. 
 
 Green highlighted the Staff Report including the analysis of findings; conclusion; and recommendation for 
approval with recommended conditions.  Green submitted the report to record as evidence; no objections were 
presented. 
 
 Property Owner, Jimmy Bingham, 7930 Manasota Key Road, Englewood, Fl  33523, was present and sworn. 
 
 Bingham stated that the Authorized Representative was in route but was delayed due to an accident on I-75. 
 He stated that he would try to answer any questions. 
 
 Green reported that this request was included as part of the the Wal-Mart plan already submitted. 
 
 Tomlinson asked for public input.  There was none. 
 
 Tomlinson asked for questions from the Board.  There was none. 
 

MOTION by Conley, second by Small to approve the request from Wauchula Square Properties, Inc., by 
and through its authorized Representative, Landon, Moree & Associates, Inc., for a Site Development Plan Approval 
for the construction/operation of a Wendy’s Restaurant with drive-thru, 1.025MOL ac, C-1 (Neighborhood 
Commercial), based on staff’s findings, conclusion, and recommendation for approval and recommended conditions.  
 Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING  
MINUTES          -4-     May 3, 2001 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
 Barncord suggested recommending to the Board of County Commissioners amending “Comp Plan” Policy 
L1.15 to require a 5ac minimum for land to be transferred to a family member if the applicant owns over 10 acres. 
 
 Green pointed out that the State Statute mandates that no changes can be made during the update of EAR 
required “Comp Plan” changes.  Updates are expected to be completed by October 2001.  Green stated that a 
recommendation could go to the Board of County Commissioners after the update. 
 
 Nicholson spoke against the recommendation.  He stated that current land regulations allow density less 
than 5 acres. 
 
 MOTION to adjourn meeting at 8:00 P.M.  Next Regular Meeting, Thursday, June 7, 2001, 6:00 P.M. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Ginny Stone, Executive Secretary  


